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KILMOE, a parish, in the Western division of the barony of WEST CARBERY, Co Cork and 
province of MUNSTER; containing, with the villages of Rock Island and Crookhaven (both of 
which are described under their respective heads), 6889 inhabitants. It forms a peninsula on the 
southern coast, bounded by Dunmanus bay and Crookhaven; and comprises 10,738 statute 
acres, as applotted under the tithe act. About one-third of the land is under tillage, chiefly by 
spade-husbandry, and the remainder is bog and mountain land, but the base of the mountains 
affords good pasturage; the highest mountain is Cahir, near Mizen Head. The scenery is very 
bold and interesting: the mountains are of schistose formation, based on argillaceous grit, with 
veins of quartz intermingled; deposits of copper are found in various places and masses of it 
are found in the mountain streams, but no mines have been opened: there are several small 
lakes. 
On its western and southern boundaries are three remarkable headlands, namely, Three Castle 
Head, Mizen Head, called by Ptolemy Notium, or the South Promontory, it being the most 
south-western land in Ireland, in lat. 51° 26' 16", and lon. 9° 50'; and Brow Head, also said to 
be the Notium of Ptolemy. Dunmanus bay, which bounds the parish on the north-west, has 
deep water and good anchorage almost as far up as Mannin island, but is greatly exposed to 



westerly winds, and is little frequented except by small vessels, which can ride in Dunmanus 
creek or above Mannin island. Besides this island there are in the bay Owen, Horse, Colt, 
Lamb, Bird, Furze, and Carbery islands, of which only the last is inhabited. Within the limits of 
the parish are numerous bays and creeks, the principal of which are Ballydevlin bay, 
Crookhaven, and Barley cove, in each of which there is good anchorage. Petty sessions are 
held at Tourmore on alternate Wednesdays, and there is a constabulary police station at 
Goleen. 
The principal seats are Rockview, the residence of Florence. McCarty, Esq.; Seaview, of D. 
Coghlan, Esq.; Rock Island House, of J. Notter, Esq.; Ballydevlin, of L. J. Fleming, Esq.; 
Crookhaven House, of R. Doe, Esq.; Ballynaule, of J. Baker, Esq.; Goleen House, of J. 
McCarthy, Esq.; and Tourmore, of R. Bailie, Esq. 
The living is a rectory and vicarage, in the diocese of Cork, and in the alternate patronage of 
the Crown and the Bishop: the tithes amount to £500. There is no glebe-house; the glebe 
comprises 7a. 0r. 4p. Here are some extensive tracts of mountain land belonging to the see of 
Cork, but now in the hands of the Ecclesiastical Commissioners. The church is at Crookhaven. 
In the R. C. divisions the parish forms part of the union or district of West Skull, and has a 
chapel at Goleen, which was built in 1806. There are five public schools, in which about 400 
children are educated, and about 200 are taught in five private schools; there are also three 
Sunday schools, but most of them are closed during the winter. The three castles which give 
name to a lofty promontory are detached buildings, within a gun-shot of each other: they are on 
the cliff and near a spacious and very clear lake, and are stated to have been built by the 
Mahonys in the 15th century. At Ballydevlin is a castle, called Desmond castle, which was 
built in 1495 by the Mahonys. Some remains of ancient castles also exist at Lisgriffin and on 
the shore of the lake of Dunkelly; and near the head of Barley cove are the ruins of the old 
parochial church. 

 AUGHADOWN, or AGHADOWN, a parish, in the East Division of the barony of WEST 
CARBERY, county of CORK, and province of MUNSTER, 3¼ miles (W. S. W.) from 
Skibbereen; containing, with several inhabited islands, 5419 inhabitants.  

This parish is situated on the north bank of the river Ilen, and comprises 7063 statue acres, as 
applotted under the tithe act, and valued at £5400 per annum. Its surface is very uneven; in 
some parts, especially towards the north, it is rocky and unproductive; but near its southern 
boundary, towards the Ilen, the land is good and produces excellent crops. About two-thirds of 
it are under cultivation; the remainder is rocky ground and bog, of which latter there is a 
considerable extent near Newcourt. The state of agriculture is not much improved; the old 
heavy wooden plough is still used, and some of the land is cultivated by spade labour; the 
fences are everywhere much neglected. Several good roads intersect the parish, one of which is 
a new line from Skibbereen to Crookhaven, likely to be of considerable advantage. The Ilen is 
navigable for vessels of 200 tons' burden nearly to its eastern extremity: a quay and 
storehouses have been constructed at Newcourt, but are entirely neglected, and the harbour is 
only frequented by a few sand boats, which discharge their cargoes there for the convenience 
of the farmers.  

The principal seats are Aughadown House, that of H. Becher, Esq., occupying an elevated site 
in the midst of flourishing plantations, and commanding a fine view of the western coast; Lake 
Marsh, of Hugh Lawton, Esq.; Whitehall, of S. Townsend, Esq.; Newcourt, of Becher 
Fleming, Esq.; the Glebe-house, the residence of the Rev. T. D. Moore; and Holly Hill, of the 
Rev. J. Coppinger, P.P.  

Fairs for the sale of cattle, sheep, pigs, &c., are held on May 6th and Oct. 2nd. A manor court 
is held monthly by a seneschal appointed by Lord Carbery, for the recovery of debts under 
40shillings; and here is a constabulary police station.  

The living is a vicarage, in the diocese of Ross, and in the patronage of the Bishop; the rectory 
is partly impropriate in Lord Audley and partly forms the corps of the archdeaconry of Ross. 



The tithes amount ot £600, of which £300 is payable to the impropriator and appropriator, and 
£300 to the vicar. The church, situated on the margin of the river, is a small neat edifice with a 
square tower, and was built by aid of a loan of £500, in 1812, from the late Board of First 
Fruits. The glebe-house is handsome and commodious, and is situated on a glebe of 45½ acres.  

In the R. C. division this parish is the head of a union or district, which comprises also the 
parish of Kilcoe and part of Abbeystrowry, and contains two chapels, situated at Aughadown 
and Kilcoe, the former of which is a large and handsome edifice, occupying an elevated site 
near Currabeg.  

In addition to the parochial schools, there are schools at Whitehall and near Newcourt, also a 
pay school. In the demesne of Whitehall are the ruins of Kincoe or Kincolisky castle, built by 
the O'Driscols in 1495; and on the grounds of Lake View are some picturesque remains of an 
ecclesiastical edifice, called by the people of the neighbourhood the Abbey of Our Lady.  

 


